
 

1 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

 

AGENDA 
 

July 2020 
  



 

2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
JULY 2020 ..................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
TABLE OF CONTENTS ................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

MINUTES JUNE 2020 .............................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

JULY 2020 AGENDA .............................................................................................................................................................................. 27 

CASE NO. 1 741 KENNILWORTH RD. SW ............................................................................................................................................... 29 

QUESTIONNAIRE ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 30 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

CASE NO. 2 1212 FREEMONT ST. SW .................................................................................................................................................... 32 

QUESTIONNAIRE ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 33 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 34 

CASE NO. 3 302 12TH AV NW ................................................................................................................................................................. 35 

QUESTIONNAIRE ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 36 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 37 

CASE NO. 4 602 CLEARVIEW ST SW ...................................................................................................................................................... 38 

QUESTIONNAIRE ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 39 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 40 

CASE NO. 5 2115 CENTRAL PKWY SW APT K-13 .................................................................................................................................... 41 

QUESTIONNAIRE ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 42 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 43 

CASE NO. 6 402 BELLEMEADE ST SW .................................................................................................................................................... 44 

LETTER ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 45 
SURVEY ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 46 
LINE LOCATE .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 47 
PROPOSED SITE ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 48 
PROPOSED FINISHED POOL ....................................................................................................................................................................... 49 
SWIMMING POOL PERMIT ........................................................................................................................................................................ 50 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 51 

CASE NO. 7 123 HAMAKER ST SW......................................................................................................................................................... 52 

CASE NO. 8 2732 LONGFELLOW DR. SW ............................................................................................................................................... 53 

MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 54 
 

 

  



 

3 

 

MINUTES JUNE 2020 

 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Chair, Delayne Dean, Mr. Charles Taylor, Ms. Susana Salcido,  

         Rev. George Allen 

   

SUPERNUMERARIES:    Mr. Steven Thomas 

   

OTHERS PRESENT:    Mr. Chip Alexander, Asst. City Attorney 

            Mr. Matthew Marques, Planner 

           Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 

               Mrs. Nancy Whiteside, Recorder 

 

Chairperson, Delayne Dean called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. on 7th floor at City Hall.   

 

Mr. Bob Sims called the roll.   

 

The Board considered the following applications and appeals. 

 

The minutes from the May 2020 meeting were approved without any changes. Mr. Charles Taylor motioned to 

approve the minutes. Mr. Steven Thomas seconded the motion. On a voice vote the motion carried.  

 

POINT OF INFORMATION: TODAY’S MEETING IS BEING BROADCAST LIVE VIA YOUTUBE DUE 

TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

  

Application and appeal of Nelson Hernandez for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in 

Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an 

administrative office for a masonry business located at 1019 Moulton St. E., property is located in a R-3 Single-

Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

Mr. Nelson Hernandez presented this case to the board. Mr. Hernandez stated his name was Nelson Hernandez and 

his address was 1019 East Moulton St. Mr. Hernandez stated he would like to use one room in his home for 

administrative purposes for his masonry business. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked Mr. Hernandez if the property owner was aware that he was wanting to run a business 

from this address, Mr. Hernandez stated yes. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Mr. Hernandez about the type of equipment he would be using. Mr. Hernandez stated at 

this time he had a trailer and a couple of scaffolds. Mr. Hernandez stated he does have other equipment that is kept 

in storage and not stored on the property. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Mr. Hernandez if he had any employees, Mr. Hernandez stated no he does not have any 

employees. Mr. Taylor reminded Mr. Hernandez that if he did acquire any employees that they could not meet him 

at his home they would need to meet him at the job site or another location, Mr. Hernandez understood. 

 



 

4 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Mr. Hernandez if he had any signage. Mr. Hernandez stated he had a sign on his truck. 

Mr. Taylor reminded Mr. Hernandez that he could not have his street address listed on any signage phone, 

numbers, social media are all acceptable, Mr. Hernandez understood. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean, asked if the supplies needed for the job would be delivered to the job site, Mr. Hernandez 

stated yes. 

 

Rev. George Allen asked Mr. Hernandez if he would ever have several pallets of brick stored at his home, Mr. 

Hernandez stated no. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for any further questions.  

 

Chair Delayne Dean stated that this meeting was being streamed on line and any questions could be emailed to 

bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov and 90 seconds was allowed for the public to submit any concerns. There were no 

concerns submitted. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Rev. George Allen motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Steven Thomas seconded the motion. On a roll 

call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

  

Application and appeal of Martrena Haley for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in Section 

25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an administrative 

office for an online fashion accessory business located at 1806 Runnymeade Ave. SW Apt# 203 D, property is 

located in a R-4 Multifamily Residential Zoning District. 

 

Ms. Martrena Haley presented this case to the Board. Ms. Haley stated her name was Martrena Haley and her 

address was 1806 Runnymeade Ave SW Apt #203 D. Ms. Haley stated she would like to start an on-line business 

selling fashion accessories. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked Ms. Haley if she would be keeping inventory at her home. Ms. Haley stated yes she 

would keep inventory at her home. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas reminded Ms. Haley that customers could not come to her home, Ms. Haley understood. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean verified that Ms. Haley would be selling on-line only, Ms. Haley stated yes. 

Mrs. Susana Salcido, asked Ms. Haley if she had heard from the previous case what was allowed for advertising. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas explained to Ms. Haley that her home address was not allowed any advertisements. Mr. 

Thomas explained to Ms. Haley that she was allowed to have business name, phone numbers and social media 

accounts listed, Ms. Haley understood. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked how her inventory would be delivered to her home. Ms. Haley stated she would order 

her inventory from a whole sale website and it would be delivered via common carrier. 

 

mailto:bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov


 

5 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Ms. Haley if the property owner was aware that she was wanting to run a business from 

her home. Ms. Haley stated yes they were aware and offered to show a letter from the property owners to the 

Board. The Board declined to read the letter. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for any further questions.  

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public and advised there 

would be 90 seconds allowed for submission. 

 

There were no questions submitted. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. On a roll 

call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

  

Application and appeal of LaTasha Jones Campbell for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in 

Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an 

administrative office for online craft sales located at 3102 Sumac Road SW, property is located in a R-2 Single-

Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

Ms. LaTasha Campbell presented this case to the Board. Ms. Campbell stated her name was LaTasha Jones 

Campbell and her address was 3102 Sumac Rd. SW. Ms. Campbell stated she would like to obtain a business 

license for on-line craft sales.  

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for questions from the Board. 

 

Ms. Susana Salcido verified that Ms. Campbell understood about the advertising for the business and her inventory 

being kept in one room in her home.  

 

Ms. Campbell stated she did not have any questions. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked Ms. Campbell if she would be making the crafts herself. And, if so what type of crafts 

would she be creating. Ms. Campbell stated she would be making the crafts herself and that she made small 

wooden signs. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean reminded Ms. Campbell that there could not be any customers coming to her home, Ms. 

Campbell understood. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas asked Ms. Campbell how she advertises. Ms. Campbell replied at the moment she is only 

advertising on Instgram. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean verified there were no comments from the public. 



 

6 

 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, asked if there would be any noises or smells. Ms. Campbell stated 

no she actually only paints the design onto the wood. 

 

Mrs. Susana Salcido motioned to approve this case submitted. Mr. Steven Thomas seconded the motion. On a roll 

call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 4 

  

Application and appeal of Pam Alford for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in Section  25-

10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have a cookie business 

located at 4501 Willow Bend Rd. SE, property is located in a R-2 Single-Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

Mrs. Pam Alford presented this case to the Board. Mrs. Alford stated her name was Pam Alford and her address 

was 4501 Willow Bend Rd. Mrs. Alford stated her minor daughter would like to have a cookie baking business. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas reminded Mrs. Alford that her home address cannot be displayed on any advertisements and 

that customers cannot come to their home to pick up orders, all of the orders will have to be delivered, Mrs. Alford 

understood. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean reminded Mrs. Alford that there could not be any employees unless they lived in the same 

home, Mrs. Alford understood. 

 

Mrs. Alford stated that they did obtain their servicing certificate. Mr. Charles Taylor verified that a copy of that 

letter had been submitted. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for any further questions from the Board. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean verified there were no comments from the public. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. On a 

roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 5 

  

Application and appeal of Andrew C. Strong III for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in 

Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an 

administrative office for a music production business at 2731 Longfellow Dr. SW, property is located in a R-2 

Single-Family Residential Zoning District. 

 



 

7 

 

Mr. Andrew Strong presented this case to the Board. Mr. Strong stated his name was Andrew C. Strong III and his 

address was 2731 Longfellow Dr. SW. Mr. Strong stated he would like a business license to have a music 

production business at his home. 

 

Rev. George Allen asked Mr. Strong if he would be recording or producing on the site. Mr. Strong replied that he 

would be doing some production. Rev. Allen replied that production of music could be a problem for him. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, asked Mr. Strong to explain what he meant by production. Mr. 

Strong explained that he plays piano and the piano music will go into a computer device and he will have on 

headphones and no one else will be able to hear. Mr. Marques asked Mr. Strong if he would be doing this by 

himself, Mr. Strong replied yes. 

 

Rev. George Allen asked Mr. Strong if there would be any bands coming to his home. Mr. Strong stated no bands 

would be coming to his home. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas expressed to Mr. Strong that the Board had been notified with concerns that bands were 

already coming to the house. Mr. Strong denied that bands were coming to the house. Mr. Thomas stated to Mr. 

Strong that there could not be any clients coming to the home, Mr. Strong understood. 

 

Rev. George Allen expressed to Mr. Strong that the neighbors seem to feel that there have already been recordings 

taking place at the home because of the noise level. Mr. Strong feels like he knows his neighbors well enough that 

they would have come to him and expressed their concerns if this indeed was a fact. 

 

Mrs. Susana Salcido asked Mr. Strong to be vigilant in the sounds which were coming from his property so it will 

not disturb his neighbors, Mr. Strong understood and agreed. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas asked Mr. Strong if the music performed electronically was only in one room in the house, Mr. 

Strong replied yes however, he has a piano which, is in another room, may be what the neighbors are hearing. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas asked Mr. Strong if he had a production studio at his home, Mr. Strong replied no. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for questions from the audience. 

 

Mr. William Smith, 2705 Longfellow Dr. SW came forward. Mr. Smith stated he had concerns about a business in 

the subdivision. Mr. Smith was under the impression that Mr. Strong was requesting for the neighborhood to be 

rezoned as a business district. Mr. Smith stated that the subdivision has a covenants, which he understands that this 

committee cannot enforce, however he would like to see the residences follow the rules.  

 

Mr. Charles Taylor interjected to Mr. Smith that Mr. Strong was not requesting for the subdivision to be rezoned as 

a business district.  

 

Mr. Taylor explained what Mr. Strong is requesting is for a home occupation business which is allowed.  

 

Mr. Taylor explained The Board of Zoning and Adjustment cannot rezone anything and an administrative office is 

permitted in a residential zoning district. Mr. Taylor explained that Mr. Strong is asking to use one room in his 

home for this business. 

 

Mr. Smith continued stating that a business was opposed in the Braswell Subdivision. 

 



 

8 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Mr. Smith if he was aware that there were already home occupations located in the 

Braswell Subdivision. Mr. Smith stated he was not aware of any home occupations in the Braswell Subdivision. 

 

Mr. Smith was directed to look at the monitor which had a location map showing where home occupations are 

currently located in the Braswell Subdivision. 

 

Mr. Smith questioned the legality of these businesses because of the covenant that is in place for the Braswell 

Subdivision. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor explained to Mr. Smith that the businesses were legal and it would be up to the neighborhood 

to enforce any portion of the conveyance that they felt was being compromised. 

 

Mrs. Susana Salcido explained to Mr. Smith that Mr. Strong was asking for the administration portion of the music 

business in his home. Mr. Smith understood the request but he was against the business being operated out of the 

home regardless the type of business. Mr. Smith was against home deliveries coming to the home. The Board 

explained to Mr. Smith that home deliveries take place every day in that subdivision at this time and this would not 

make any difference. 

 

Rev. George Allen explained to Mr. Smith that Mr. Strong would not have customers coming into his house. Mr. 

Smith responded that he could not be sure that would not happen. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean explained to Mr. Smith that there could not be any customers coming to Mr. Strong’s house. 

 

Rev. George Allen explained to Mr. Strong that if customers were observed going to and from Mr. Strong’s house 

then the neighborhood should report that to the Building Department. 

 

Mrs. Juanita Smith, 2705 Longfellow Dr. SW came forward. Mrs. Smith asked about the rezoning from a R-2 

zoning to a business zone.  

 

Chair, Delayne Dean explained to Mrs. Smith that there would not be any rezoning. Chair Dean explained that this 

would allow for an administrative office for Mr. Strong’s business within his home, that is what a use permitted on 

appeal is. 

 

Mrs. Smith asked why Mr. Strong had to request permission, why he couldn’t just start the business. 

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Asst. City Attorney, explained to Mrs. Smith the way a zoning ordinance works. Mr. 

Alexander stated uses permitted on appeal can’t be allowed unless BOZA approves the business. The businesses 

are allowed, in a neighborhood, if BOZA approves it.  

 

Mr. Alexander explained it is a check and balance system to ensure it is not a business type that will disrupt a 

neighborhood. Mr. Alexander explained that no one should be able to tell a business is being run out of the home. 

If there seems to be people coming and going from the home then this activity should be reported to the Building 

Department where an investigation will begin. 

 

 Mr. Alexander stated that there should not be any semi-trucks coming into the neighborhood however, delivery 

trucks such as FedX, UPS etc… are allowed. Mr. Alexander explained that all business should be conducted within 

that one room in his home. Mr. Alexander stated that the home address cannot be displayed as to encourage 

customers to come to the home to do business. Mr. Alexander stated that all business had to be conducted on line 

in that room or off site. 



 

9 

 

 

Mr. Alexander stated that this is not a rezoning. The business is permitted if BOZA determines that it will not be a 

disturbance to the neighborhood. 

 

Mrs. Smith inquired if the neighborhood covenants and restrictions are null and void. 

 

Mr. Alexander responded that the covenants is enforceable but only through the Morgan County Courts. Mr. 

Alexander explained that the covenants are private agreements between parties which the city does not enforce, 

Mrs. Smith understood. 

 

Mr. Bill Smith asked about the other home occupations that are in the neighborhood currently and if these 

businesses operate outside of the guidelines which are outline here in these meetings how are they enforced. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, explained to Mr. Smith if it was suspected that a home with a home 

occupation was operating outside of the guide lines then a neighbor should report the suspicious activity to the 

Building Department and it would be investigated and if need be then the business license would be revoked. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean, called for any further questions. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, asked Mr. Strong about a shed that was moved into the back yard and how 

big is the shed. 

 

Mr. Strong replied that the shed was 10x15. 

 

Mr. Sims asked Mr. Strong how far off of the property line did the shed sit. Mr. Sims stated that any accessory 

structure had to be 5 feet off the sides and 5 feet off the rear. If the structure is under 200 square feet then no 

permit is required. Mr. Sims asked Mr. Strong if there was any electric run to the structure.  

 

Mr. Strong replied that there was not any electrical run to the structure. 

 

Mr. Sims verified that Mr. Strong was not planning on running his business in that structure. Mr. Strong replied he 

was not going to run the business from the structure. 

 

Mr. Strong stated that the structure was much further than 5 feet off of the setbacks and that he would verify that 

the size of the structure was under 200 square feet. 

 

Mrs. Susana Salcido asked what steps Mr. Strong would need to take if the structure is over the 200 square feet. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims replied Mr. Strong would need to come to the Building Department and purchase a building permit 

and then have an inspection to see how the building is anchored and that all of the building codes are met. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated that there had been a petition presented from the neighborhood and email and that 

these articles will become part of the official minutes. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims reminded Mr. Strong if business is being conducted in the structure there would be an investigation. 

 

Rev. George Allen motioned to approve this case to the board. Mr. Charles Taylor seconded the motion. On a roll 

call vote the motion carried. 

 



 

10 

 

 
 

 



 

11 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

12 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

13 

 

 
 

 

 



 

14 

 

CASE NO. 6 

  

Application and appeal of Kanavis Derez Lee for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in 

Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an 

administrative office for a disc jockey business at 1013 Terrehaute Ave. SW, property is located in a R-2 Single-

Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

Mr. Kanavis Lee presented this case to the board. Mr. Lee stated his name was Kanavis Derez Lee and his address 

is 1013 Terrehaute Ave. SW. Mr. Lee stated he would like to have an administrative office for a disc jockey 

business at his home.  

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Mr. Lee if he would have any employees and how he was going to be advertising. 

 

Mr. Lee stated he would be working by himself and he only advertises on Facebook at this time. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor told Mr. Lee that he cannot have his street address listed on any advertisements, website and 

phone number were permitted, Mr. Lee understood. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked Mr. Lee if the property owner was aware he was wanting to start a business at this 

address, Mr. Lee replied yes. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked Mr. Lee what type of equipment he would be using. Mr. Lee stated he had 2 speakers 

and one sub-woofer. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean how Mr. Lee how he transported the equipment. Mr. Lee stated in a 4x6 trailer that is stored 

at his home. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean reminded Mr. Lee if he acquired any employees the employee could not meet at his home 

they would need to meet at the venue or another location, Mr. Lee understood. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

No comments were submitted. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for further questions from the Board. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. On a roll 

call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 7 

  

Application and appeal of Kanavis Derez Lee for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in 

Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an 

administrative office for a preservation services business at 1013 Terrehaute Ave. SW, property is located in a R-2 

Single-Family Residential Zoning District. 

 



 

15 

 

Mr. Kanavis Lee presented this case to the Board. Mr. Lee stated his name was Kanavis Lee and his address was 

1013 Terrehaute Av. SW. Mr. Lee stated he would like to use one room in his house for a preservation service 

business. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

No comments were submitted. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for questions from the Board. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked Mr. Lee to explain what a preservation service business is exactly. 

Mr. Lee explained that he would receive work orders from banks or real estate companies to over- see getting 

properties ready for inspections doing small jobs or hiring contractors to do work, if necessary. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean verified that the work would be administrative work only and that none of the work would be 

taking place at his home, Mr. Lee replied only administrative. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean reminded Mr. Lee that employees nor contractors would be able to meet him at his home, Mr. 

Lee understood. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas reminded Mr. Lee that his home address could not be listed on any advertisements, Mr. Lee 

understood. 

 

Chair Delayne Dean asked for any further questions from the board and verified that there were no comments 

submitted through the website. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, asked Mr. Lee if he was aware of the state contractor’s laws, Mr. Lee replied 

he was aware of the state contractor’s laws.  

 

Mr. Sims explained to Mr. Lee that as he hired contractor’s to do work, outside of general maintenance work, he 

would be acting as a general contractor which, at that time, may require him to have a state general contractor’s 

license or home builder’s license based on the dollar amount for the scope of work, Mr. Lee understood. 

 

Mr. Sims advised Mr. Lee to be careful and not do any work and not be properly licensed because if so and caught 

could get him into trouble at a local level as well as a state level, Mr. Lee understood. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mrs. Susana Salcido motioned to approve this case submitted. Mr. Steven Thomas seconded the motion. On a roll 

call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 8 

  

Application and appeal of Jasmin Sharpley for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in Section 

25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an on-line athletic 

clothing and accessories business at 1216 Goldridge Dr. SW # 3, property is located in a R-4 Zero Multi-Family 

Zero Lot Line Residential Zoning. 

 



 

16 

 

Ms. Jasmin Sharpley presented this case to the board. Ms. Sharpley stated her name was Jasmin Sharply and her 

address was 1216 Goldridge Dr. SW #3. Ms. Sharpley stated she would like to obtain a business license for an on-

line business for an athletic clothing and accessories business. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

Mr. Steven Thomas reminded Ms. Sharpley that there could not be any customers coming to her home and that 

there could not be any semi-truck deliveries to her home but regular home delivery services were permitted, Ms. 

Sharpley understood. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas reminded Ms. Sharpley that her home address could not be on any of her advertisements 

however, web addresses or social media and phone numbers were permitted, Ms. Sharpley understood. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked Ms. Sharpley about her inventory. Ms. Sharpley replied she would only keep a few 

items on hand and the other items would be ordered as needed. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Ms. Sharpley if Weaver Reality was aware of her opening a business in her apartment. 

Ms. Sharpley stated yes. Ms. Sharpley stated Weaver Reality requested a business proposal and she has a letter 

from Weaver Reality stating they were fine with the business. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked if there were any emails from the public, there was not. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Steven Thomas seconded the motion. On a roll 

call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 9 

  

Application and appeal of an Administrative Decision by Stephen Pate from Section 25-10 and as defined in 

Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to store and bottle for resale alcoholic beverage at 

2205 College St. SE, property is located in a R-1 Single-Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

Mr. Stephen Pate presented this case to the board. Mr. Pate stated his name was Stephen Pate and his address was 

2205 College St SE. Mr. Pate stated he was wanting to start his own liquor brand and was looking to have an 

administrative decision overturned. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated that there has been several emails received about this case and would be made part of 

the minutes. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas asked Mr. Pate to explain the business model. 

 

Mr. Pate explained that he would pick up one barrel of 5 year old aged whiskey from a distiller in Tennessee. He 

would bring the whiskey and the bottles from Tennessee back to his home garage where he would bottle and label 

the whiskey.  

 



 

17 

 

Mr. Pate stated he could bottle the whiskey inside his home or inside the garage whichever way the board would 

approve for him to proceed. 

 

 Mr. Pate explained that he had a bottler that was about the size of a coffee maker, he would bottle, label and 

package the whiskey then the ABC Board would pick up the processed whiskey from his home and store it for him 

until he sold the whiskey to bars, restaurants or liquor stores. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas verified the description of the business as Mr. Pate had stated and asked Mr. Pate to explain 

the volume. Mr. Thomas verified that Mr. Pate had stated he would have only one barrel at a time, Mr. Pate agreed. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas asked Mr. Pate to verify how he would transfer the whiskey from Tennessee back to Alabama. 

Mr. Pate  said he would be transferring the barrel of whiskey back into Alabama in the back of a pickup truck. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas verified that Mr. Pate would be transporting only one barrel at a time, Mr. Pate agreed.  

 

Mr. Thomas verified that the business model would be strictly bottling and labeling the whiskey.  

 

Mr. Thomas verified that Mr. Pate would not be aging the whiskey at his home, Mr. Pate agreed and stated he 

could not afford more than one barrel at a time and that the board was welcome to verify that by coming to his 

home. 

 

Rev. George Allen, asked Mr. Pate if he would have anyone bottling the whiskey for him. Mr. Pate stated he would 

be doing the bottling himself. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor verified that the ABC Board would pick up the whiskey after it was bottled. Mr. Pate stated yes 

the ABC Board would pick it up at his house however, if that would be a problem he could take it to them himself. 

 

Rev. George Allen asked Mr. Pate how many pints he would get out of a barrel. Mr. Pate stated he would get 

approximately 250 bottles out of a barrel. Mr. Pate stated he would put the bottles directly back into the cases he 

took the bottles from so it would not create any extra debris. 

 

Mrs. Susana Salcido asked Mr. Pate what were the ABC Board rules for storing the whiskey in his home. Mr. Pate 

presented a letter from the Licensing and Compliance Supervisor, Laura Tucker,  

Showing that the ABC Board had approved the business proposal. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated to Mr. Pate that he was asking for an Appeal of an Administrative Decision which was 

a decision that the Building Department had passed down. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, stated that was correct. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas verified the type of truck which would be used to pick up the whiskey from Mr. Pate’s home. 

Mr. Pate stated that it would be a truck approximately the size of a FEDX or UPS truck only if he could not deliver 

it to them personally. 

 

Rev. George Allen asked if that would be legal for the ABC Board to pick up inside of a neighborhood.  

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Legal Department, stated that would be legal given that the ABC Board can technically go 

anywhere they want too and also, given the size of the truck which would be used would make it legal. 

 



 

18 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas asked Mr. Pate if the business model showed how many barrels of whiskey he would be 

processing in any given time. Mr. Pate replied he does not know exactly how long it would take however, he 

would have to sell the first barrel before he can start processing a second barrel. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas reiterated that Mr. Pate’s business model noting that after the whiskey was bottled and labeled 

and after the ABC Board had picked up the whiskey the neighborhood would not have to worry with the whiskey 

being on the property and being a fire concern, Mr. Pate agreed. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean noted that several complaints have been noted about the home becoming a liquor store with 

customers coming and going. Mr. Pate assured the board that would not happen and the delivery truck should only 

come once a month. Mr. Pate stated if the delivery truck coming to his house would be a problem for the neighbors 

he would transport the cases to the ABC’s warehouse himself.  

 

Chair, Delayne Dean told Mr. Pate if he were to get approved he may want to transport the whiskey out of the 

home himself just until the neighbors were satisfied that he is not running a liquor store from his home. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean called for any further questions from the board. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas went over the business concept again then asked Mr. Pate how he would unload the barrel 

from the pickup truck. Mr. Pate stated he would roll if off. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked if there had been any questions submitted by email or if there were any comments from 

the audience. There were no further comments. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mrs. Susana Salcido motioned to approve this this with the condition that Mr. Pate only processes and store only 

one barrel at a time on his property. Mr. Charles Taylor seconded the motion. With a roll call vote the motion 

FAILED with a 3-2 vote. 

 



 

19 

 

 
 

 



 

20 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

21 

 

CASE NO. 10 

  

Application and appeal of Tom and Lynne Coleman for the following variance in order to construct a garage at 430 

Sherman St SE, property is located in a R-3H Single Family Historical Residential Zoning District. 

 

1) 30 foot setback variance from Section 25-10.10 (2) (d) of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

2) 2.4 foot side yard variance from Section 25-10.10 (2) (e) of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Mrs. Lynn Coleman presented this case to the Board. Mrs. Coleman stated her name was Lynn Coleman and her 

address is 1214 Darrowby Lane SW.  Mrs. Coleman stated she and her husband have purchased a home at 430 

Sherman St SE in the historical district which had been condemned by the city when it was purchased. Mrs. 

Coleman stated the house was in an unsafe condition and they started rebuilding the home before the focus was put 

on the garage. 

 

Mrs. Coleman stated the home does not have a driveway and they are wanting to build a garage in the rear of the 

home. Mrs. Coleman stated that the house already sits outside of the setbacks. They are asking to a build the 

garage with access from the alley directly behind the house. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean reminded Mrs. Coleman that the BOZA Board can only grant her the setback variances 

which she was asking for and that the historical preservation board would have the final approval on design and 

plans, Mrs. Coleman understood. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for any further questions from the board. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Ms. Coleman if there were other garages in the area there are located behind the houses, 

Mrs. Coleman replied yes there are garages located behind houses already in that neighborhood. Mrs. Coleman 

named several different styles of garages located in the neighborhood. 

 

There were no comments from the public and no further questions from the board. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Steven Thomas seconded the motion. On a roll 

call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 11 

  

Application and appeal of Zane Mattox for a 6-8 foot height variance from Section 25-10.8 (2) (h) of the Zoning 

Ordinance in order to construct a new residence at 2025 Lancelot Dr. SW, Hopkins Farm Subdivision, property is 

located in a AG-1 Agricultural Zoning District. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

 

 



 

22 

 

Mr. Zane Mattox presented this case to the board. Mr. Mattox stated his name was Zane Mattox and his address is 

2910 Ashville Drive SW. Mr. Mattox stated he is requesting a 6- 8 foot height variance in order to build a new 

home at 2025 Lancelot Drive SW on 3.5 acres which they own. 

 

Mr. Mattox stated that the new home will sit approximately 140 to 150 feet to the property line and the house will 

sit another 40 feet. Mr. Mattox stated they would be approximately 190 feet from the nearest neighboring house. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked Mr. Mattox if he had any plans to sub-divide the 3.5 acres. Mr. Mattox replied no they 

did not. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for any further questions from the board. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked if there were any comments from the public, there was not. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Legal Department, advised the board to make a condition on this case to approve an 8 foot 

height because there could not be an approval for a variable. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case for an 8 foot height variance. Rev. George Allen, seconded the 

motion. On a roll call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 12 

  

Application and appeal of Lamar Advertising for a height variance from Section 25-76 (a) (3) of the Zoning 

Ordinance, to raise the height of an off premises sign to 40 feet located at 423 Beltline Rd SW, property is located 

in a M-1A Expressway Zoning Commercial District. 

 

Mr. Rod Bayless presented this case to the board. Mr. Bayless stated his name was Rod Bayless and his address 

was 3440 South Chapel Hill Road SW, Decatur, Al. 

 

Mr. Bayless stated he was representing Lamar advertising. 

 

Lamar Advertising is opposed to relocating or receiving just compensation for the removal of the billboard on 

Highway 20 at Apple Lane Farms. 

 

Mr. Bayless stated there are 2 separate options that could be utilized. One being to relocate the sign at Apple Lane 

Farms and the other is to ask for just compensation. 

 

Mr. Bayless stated instead of either of those 2 options Lamar Advertising is asking to raise the current billboard 

located at the Cracker Barrel on Beltline Rd SW a little west of where it sits now and add 10 feet of height for a 

total of 40 feet in height. 

 

Mr. Bayless stated he feels like this proposal would be more cost efficient for the City of Decatur than what is 

allocated for the relocation assistance program. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 



 

23 

 

There were no comments from the public. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for further questions from the board. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, asked whether the sign was going to be digital or static. Mr. Bayless 

replied it would be static. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. On a roll 

call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 13 

  

Application and appeal of an Administrative Decision by Dale Sebourn from Section 25-18 of the Zoning 

Ordinance in order to place a manufactured home at 1114 Woodall Rd. SW, property is located in a AG-1 

Agricultural Zoning District. 

 

Mr. Dale Sebourn presented this case to the board. Mr. Sebourn stated his name was Dale Sebourn and his address 

is 2016 Shady Grove Lane SW Decatur, AL. Mr. Sebourn stated he would like to sell the lot he owns at 1114 

Woodall Rd. SW.  

 

Mr. Sebourn stated there had been a condemned house on the lot and he had it removed. Mr. Sebourn stated he 

would like to have the lot permitted for the allowance of a mobile home. Mr. Sebourn stated the lot is located 

within the city limits and mobile homes are not permitted unless it already has a mobile home on the lot.  

 

Chair, Delayne Dean stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

There were no comments from the public. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for further questions from the board. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Mr. Sebourn if the other mobile homes had been grandfather into the city limits. Mr. 

Sebourn stated he was unsure but that was his assumption. 

 

Mrs. Susana Salcido asked Mr. Sebourn if the home across from his lot was a manufactured home. Mr. Sebourn 

replied he did not believe so however, there were several around the area which were manufactured homes. 

 

Chair, Delyane Dean asked for further questions from the board. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, stated generally if a manufactured home was located within the city limits 

before the property was annexed into the city limits they are allowed to continue that use as long as the 

manufactured home has not been removed for longer than one year, after that it loses its grandfather status.  

 

Mr. Steven Thomas asked Mr. Sebourn if the home which was removed from the lot was a manufactured home or 

a stick built home, Mr. Sebourn replied it was a regular home. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean, verified with Mr. Sebourn that the hardship for him was the other manufactured homes 

around the area. Mr. Sebourn replied yes, he feels like it will be hard to sell the lot if it’s not allowed manufactured 

home to be placed on it. 



 

24 

 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for any further questions from the board. 

 

There were no questions from the audience or by email. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, the board to consider restricting the lot to the *R-MH guidelines from 

Section 25.10.4. Throwing out Section 1 B, D, E and throwing out Section B. The guidelines not mentioned 

Section 1 A, C, F, G, H, I, J, K, L Section 2 and Section 3 would be enforced. This variance will go with the lot 

until whoever the property owner is comes back before the BOZA Board and asks for this variance to be changed. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas verified what Mr. Sims was proposed. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, asked Mr. Sebourn how far back he felt a mobile home would sit off 

of the road and asked what is around the property. Mr. Sebourn stated that there was a tree line on the north and 

east sides of the property. Mr. Marques stated that was how he saw the property on the GIS. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor motioned to approve this case with the conditions from Section 25.10.4 for the R-MH 

guidelines using Section 1 A, C, F, F ,G, H, I ,J, K, L Section 2 and Section 3. Rev. George Allen seconded the 

motion. On a roll call vote the motion carried. 

 

Sec. 25-10.4. - R-MH Residential District.  
There is hereby created an R-MH Residential District (single-family manufactured housing) for those areas so 

designated by this chapter and the zoning map of the city, which R-MH Districts shall allow single-family manufactured 
housing residences, subject to use regulations common to all "R" Districts as set forth in section 25-10 hereof, and further 
subject to the following requirements and conditions:  

(1)  General requirements:  

a.  Each manufactured home shall be installed on its own lot.  

b.  No manufactured home or lot within a R-MH District shall have vehicle access to an existing major thoroughfare 
(e.g. "collector street" or higher classified street) as defined by the zoning ordinance or comprehensive plan, or 
a major thoroughfare as defined by future plans adopted by the planning commission of the city.  

c.  There shall be a minimum separation of thirteen (13) feet between structures on separate lots.  

d.  All building setback lines shall be indicated on the preliminary and final plats.  

e.  Perimeter setbacks:  

1.  Where R-MH lots adjoin (in any manner or configuration) a major thoroughfare (e.g. collector street or 
higher classification), then an additional twenty-foot setback shall be added to those setback requirements 
set forth hereinbelow and shall be measured from the lot line.  

f.  A manufactured home installed on site, shall have a length not to exceed four (4) times its width, with the length 
measured along the longest axis and the width measured at the narrowest part of the other axis, with the 
minimum width not less than twenty-four (24) feet. This measurement shall only include the enclosed living area 
and shall not include garages, carports, decks or storage areas.  

g.  All manufactured homes shall have and be attached to a permanent masonry underpinned foundation which 
extends from the ground to the bottom of the exterior wall and surrounds the entire dwelling, the underpinned 
foundation being either brick, block, rock, painted masonry painted the same color as the building, or other 
material approved by the building director.  

h.  Each manufactured home shall be blocked and anchored in compliance with applicable law, rule or regulation.  

i.  All towing devices, wheels, axles, hitches, and license plates shall be removed.  

j.  All manufactured homes shall have permanent steps, porches or decks on all outside doorways, the supports for 
which shall be permanently anchored in the ground.  



 

25 

 

k.  All manufactured homes shall have at least a nominal 3:12 roof pitch and the roof shall have a surface of wood 
shake shingles, asphalt composition shingles, fiberglass shingles or metal tiles.  

l.  Manufactured homes shall be installed as provided in the rules of the Alabama Manufactured Housing 
Commission Administrative Procedures Code.  

(2)  Specific requirements:  

a.  Minimum lot area: Five thousand (5,000) square feet.  

b.  Maximum building area: None specified.  

c.  Minimum lot width at building line: Fifty (50) feet.  

d.  Minimum front yard setback (see also perimeter setbacks): Twenty (20) feet.  

e.  Minimum rear yard setback (see also perimeter setbacks): Twenty (20) feet.  

f.  Minimum side yard setback (see also perimeter setbacks): Five (5) feet one side, eight (8) feet the other.  

g.  Maximum building height: Thirty-five (35) feet.  

h.  Off-street parking: Two (2) spaces per dwelling unit.  

i.  Maximum density: Seven (7) dwelling units per gross acre.  

(3)  Uses prohibited: Any use not permitted or permitted on appeal, is prohibited.  

(Ord. No. 98-3434, § 6, 3-2-98; Ord. No. 05-3835, § 9, 7-11-05)  

 

CASE NO. 14 

  

Application and appeal of Tony Rodriguez for a 12 foot front yard setback variance from Section 25-10.10 (2) ( c ) 

in order to construct a front porch at 1120 9th Ave. SE, property is located in a R-3 Single Family Zoning District. 

Mr. Mike Petty presented this case to the board. Mr. Petty stated his name was Mike Petty and his address was 

1119 8th Av SE. Mr. Petty stated he was representing Mr. Rodriguez in this case. Mr. Petty stated Mr. Rodriguez is 

a personal friend to him. 

 

Mr. Petty stated that the Building Department told him he would need a variance to extend the porch on the front 

side of the home. Mr. Petty stated that he had submitted a survey of the property. Mr. Petty stated that the front 

porch would sit within the 12 foot variance. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked for questions from the board. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Mr. Petty if the porch was going to extend out 12 feet. 

 

Mr. Petty stated that the porch would be within the backside of the 12 feet. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked Mr. Petty what was the dimensions of the porch going to be. 

 

Mr. Petty stated that the dimensions were going to be 12 feet wide by 8 feet deep. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor asked if the porched would be roofed, Mr. Petty stated yes. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, asked Mr. Petty how far from the foundation of the house would the porch 

come out, Mr. Petty stated 8 feet. 

 



 

26 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, stated that there would only be a need for a 6 foot front yard variance instead of a 12 foot yard 

variance.  

 

Mr. Sims stated if the 12 foot variance is granted then the porch could be built to 16 feet. Mr. Petty stated he 

requested what the building department had to ask for to make sure he was granted enough space. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean, stated the email address where questions could be submitted by the public. 

 

There were no comments from the public. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor verified that 6 feet is all that is needed according to the survey. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, replied yes if he is wanting to go 8 feet from the front of the house. Mr. Sims stated that the most he 

would need is 6 feet to get 8 feet from the front of the house. Mr. Sims explained to Mr. Petty why the 12 feet is 

not needed. 

 

Mr. Petty stated that the plans were drawn up for a 12 foot wide 8 foot deep front porch. 

 

 Mr. Bob Sims stated that there should only be a need for a 7 foot variance and this would allow for an overhang as 

well. 

 

Mr. Charles Taylor verified that it would be safe in saying 7 feet for the variance. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims stated yes 7 feet would be enough. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas asked if the paper work would need to be changed.  

 

Mr. Bob Sims, explained that there would not be a need to change the paper work. Mr. Sims explained that a 

request can always be granted for less than what was asked for but it cannot be for more unless it is re-advertised, 

Mr. Thomas understood. 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean asked if there were any comments from the public, there was not any comments. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no further comments. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case with the condition it was for only a 7 foot variance. Mr. Charles 

Taylor seconded the motion. On a roll call vote the motion carried. 

 

Other business: Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department requested that the BOZA meetings be moved to the Turner-

Surles Building located at 702 Sycamore St NW for the duration of the COVID-19 Crisis to have ample room for 

everyone in attendance. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 6:00pm 

 

 

______________________________ 

Chair, Delayne Dean 



 

27 

 

 

July 2020 AGENDA 

 

The Board of Zoning Adjustment of the City of Decatur will hold a public meeting in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

ON THE FIRST FLOOR OF City Hall, 402 Lee Street NE, on Tuesday, July 28, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. and also 

broadcast live on City of Decatur You Tube Channel at https://www.youtube.com/c/Cityof DecaturAl for 

the purpose of hearing the following applications and appeals at which time all interested parties are requested to 

the be present and will be given an opportunity to be heard. Questions can also be submitted via email at 

bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

  

Application and appeal of Bryan Ramirez for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in Section 

25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an administrative 

office for a home remodeling business located at 741 Kennilworth Rd. SW., property is located in a R-2 Single-

Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

  

Application and appeal of Ulonda Milam for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in Section 

25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an administrative 

office for an on-line sales for miscellaneous products at 1212 Freemont St SW, property is located in a R-2 Single-

Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

  

Application and appeal of Cordell Clay for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in Section 25-

10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an administrative office 

for a fence business located at 302 12th Av NW, property is located in a R-3 Single-Family Residential Zoning 

District. 

 

CASE NO. 4 

  

Application and appeal of Timothy F. Cunningham for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in 

Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an 

administrative office for a lawn care business located at 602 Clearview St SW, property is located in a R-2 Single-

Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 5 

  

Application and appeal of DeAuhjdrah Washington for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as allowed in 

Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an 

administrative office for an on-line clothing boutique located at 2115 Central Parkway SW Apt K 13, property is 

located in a R-4 Mulit-Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

 

 

mailto:bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov


 

28 

 

CASE NO. 6 

  

Application and appeal of Cecilo Rodrigurez of an Administrative Decision of the Building Official from Section 

25-2 (1) and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to place a swimming pool 

on the side yard at 402 Bellemeade St. SW, property is located in a R-2 Single Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 7 

  

Application and appeal of Thomas Strong of an Administrative Decision of the Building Official  from Section 25-

2 (1) and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance use an existing detached 

garage at 123 Hamaker St SW, property is located in a R-1 Single Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 8 

  

Application and appeal of Cathy Denmark for a 5 foot rear yard setback variance, from Section 25-10.9 (2) (d) in 

order to construct a master bathroom at 2732 Longfellow Dr. SW, property is located in a R-2 Single Family 

Residential Zoning District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

29 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 1 741 KENNILWORTH RD. SW 



 

30 

 

 
 

 

 

 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

31 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAP 

a

a

a

a
a

a

a
a

611 609613

610612

609613 611615

610612620
616 614

614
616

618

613
615

605 603609611 607
715

715

745

604608610 606

715

743

741

738

715

742
715715

604744
610612 606

806808810814
616

812 614

715715

715715

715

613 603605607611 609617 615

715

801803805807809811813815

810 732808 724
814

802

608
804 802

603715

739

609 605740 607

3108

3202

1101

1102

3211

3209

3207

3203

3201

3205

3011

30093106

3106

3105
31053106

3007
3104

3103 31043104 3103
3005

3101 3101 30033102
3101

3001

30043006

3005

3002

2934

2919

2917

31023102

CEDAR LAKE RD SW

KENNILWORTH RD SW

S
P

R
IN

G
 A

V
 S

W

W
H

E
A

T
 A

V
 S

W

BLAINE DR SW

DENISE DR SW

PLUM DR SW

J
E

N
N

Y
 A

V
 S

W

P
IN

E
V

IE
W

 D
R

 S
W

G
L

E
N

M
E

R

E
P

L
S

W

PUMPKIN DR SW

C
E

D
A

R
 L

A
K

E
 P

L
 S

W
LOCATION OF CASE NO. 1

Case No. 1
741 Kennilworth Rd. SW ®

City of Decatur
Board of Zoning Adjustment

July 28, 2020

Legend

a HOME OCCUPATIONS

parcels
SENT MAILINGS TO



 

32 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 2 1212 FREEMONT ST. SW 



 

33 

 

 
 

 

 

 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

34 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAP 

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

aa

907 901

908
906

904

916

1406

1001

1209

1209

1209
1209

1209

1209

1403
14011312

1317
13161310

1315
1316

1315
1308

1314
1313 1314

1306

1312

131213111311
1304

1310

131013091309

1308
13081307 1307

1218

1306
13061305 1305

1216

1304 13041303 1303

10011005 1003
1007

1214 100912011213 1207 12051211 120312091215
1217130213021301 1301

1212 1219

12161215 1216 1215

100412021210 10021214 1212 1006100812041210
1216

120612081221
1010

1214121312141213

1208 1223

1211 12121212 1211

12251206 10051007 1003
1011 100912031205 120112071211 12091213 1001121512101210 12091209

1227
1204

1207 1208
1229

1006 10041206 101012021204
1202

1216 1208 10081214 1210
1212

1231
1602

1209

12041204 1203 12331203

1215

1001

123512021201
16011603

12021201

1002
1402 1210

1208
12201502 1218122215061508 1404 12021504

1206
1510 12241226

1204

1004

1006

1302

1002
12051205 1206 1206

10031007100910111207 12031205 120112091213 12111215

1406

12081207

1010 1004121212141216

8TH ST SW

A
R

B
O

R
 A

V
 S

W

DODD DR SW

FREEMONT ST SW

1
2

T
H

 A
V

 S
W

C
L

O
V

E
R

D
A

L
E

 A
V

 S
W

CHADWELL ST SW

1
4

T
H

 A
V

 S
W

T
H

O
M

A
S

 D
R

 S
W

LOCATION OF CASE NO. 2

Case No. 2
1212 Freemont St. SW ®

City of Decatur
Board of Zoning Adjustment

July 28, 2020

Legend

a HOME OCCUPATIONS

parcels
SENT MAILINGS TO



 

35 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 3 302 12TH AV NW 



 

36 

 

 
 

 

 

 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

37 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAP 

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

323

215

222

306

406

407

204

206

202

114113112
114 115

408 405405

410 409426409412 409409

411411 414 411 422
412 429 428413

204

212210
208
206

220

222

232
230

226

210

218

216
214

214

216

218

220

116115
115

116 118 117
118117118

119
120

117

120
120

121

202201201 201202201
204

204

206204206206 206
205

205

202

209 208208 210208
208

207 211210
210

212212213 213209 213211 212210
212

214214215

208

214213211
214

219216 216217209
215213

211

219216

209

205

211 216 221
217

303

238
301 302

302 302305
301301 302

201203

222 223
221

224 224222 225
301 225224

303302 304304307 303 304
302

303

306306 305304304
303301 306305309 305

308306
308306

309311

217

219

307313 310 309

306 314316307 314 313

310

319
313316318

308
316 317

309 317321
318

320 318318
310

319
323 311

319 320

304 305315
312311

311
311

317 320322 320323
312

320
319401

403
322 909 324

403 403
404

401 403
404 405404

321327 323315 324405
404

401401

401402401402406 403

226228

202
203204203203

220221
220 223218

218

325
314

322

405406

215

406
406

410

312
317

407
407

408408
408

407

408408

222

224

303 309 310

322313 319

224223 223
236

410409 420
410 412

410
412412 411

13021304

1
3

T
H

 A
V

 N
W

1
2

T
H

 A
V

 N
W

2ND ST NW

3RD ST NW

1
0

T
H

 A
V

 N
W

M
E

M
O

R
IA

L
 D

R
 N

W

M
O
N
R
O
E
 D

R
 N

W

1
1

T
H

 A
V

 N
W

1ST ST NW

A
D

A
M

S
 D

R
 N

W

1
4

T
H

 A
V

 N
W

1
1

T
H

 A
V

 N
W

1ST ST NW

LOCATION OF CASE NO. 3

Case No. 3
302 12th Av. NW ®

City of Decatur
Board of Zoning Adjustment

July 28, 2020

Legend

a HOME OCCUPATIONS

parcels
SENT MAILINGS TO



 

38 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 4 602 CLEARVIEW ST SW 



 

39 

 

 
 

 

 

 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

40 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAP 

a

a

a

a

a a

a

a

415413
409
407

311315317

408
406

410

405
407409411415 413417427 419421423429 425431

433601605 603
607611805 609801 613803807811 809

802 418428
814816

422 406420424426434 416 404
408430614 432 414808 606804 612 410

812 806 608610 604810 602

311315317

419

413
417

420520522
502504

807811

414

314316320

521523
519

515

509
507505

501
503512

510

516

2401

24122413

2500

24102411

24082409
2500

24062407

2500

2500 24042405
2500

2414
2416

2412
2410

2406
2408

2402
2500

2403

2404

2500

2404

2408

2330 2327
2318 2314

2316
23122320

2326

2325
23102311

2324

2309
2323

2310
2308

2309

2321

2318
23052306

2315 2304
2305

2320

2314
23032304

2311

2312 2303 23022302 2301
2309

2310

2307

2305
2304 2213 2214

2218

2402

2301

2413

2419
2417

2322

2409
2407
2405

2401

2414

2308 2307
23062307

2412
2410

2406
2408

2404

2402

2401

2415
2413

2411
2409

2403

2401

2405
2407

2419
2417

2421
2423
2425

2418
2416

2424
2422

2426
2427
24292429

2427
2425

2430
2428
2426

2422
2424

2420

2416
2418

2414

2408

2406
2404
2402

2421
2423

2419

2410
2412

2417
2415
2413

2411

2409

2407

2403

2405

2401

CLEARVIEW ST SW

CLARK ST SW

C
L

A
R

A
 A

V
 S

W

C
R

E
S

S
 S

T
 S

W

C
A

L
R

A
Y

 A
V

 S
W

H
A

M
IL

T
O

N
 D

R
 S

W

H
A

L
IF

A
X

 P
L

 S
W

H
A

R
P

E
T

H
 P

L
 S

W

K
E

L
L
Y

 A
V

 S
W AS PEN WA Y

S
W

R
E

M
IN

G
T

O
N

C
IR

S
W

LOCATION OF CASE NO. 4

Case No. 4
602 Clearview St. SW ®

City of Decatur
Board of Zoning Adjustment

July 28, 2020

Legend

a HOME OCCUPATIONS

parcels
SENT MAILINGS TO



 

41 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 5 2115 CENTRAL PKWY SW APT K-13 



 

42 

 

 
 

 

 

 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

43 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAP 

a

a

a

a

a

a

314

312

309 305313315317

202
208210224 204206304306 212308310 302 214314316 312

209211213215217219221

125311313 127317319 315

316

201203205207

314
310

307

308

305

303

302
307

306

311 304
308

310

316

314314318

314
320

314314

314

324

324 314
324324

314314324324324

1944

2114

2102

1950

1946

2014

1948

2204

2202

2108

21152115

2106 2115
2115

2104

2115 2115

2101
2115

2115

2115 2115
2115

2014

1931

1931

1927

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 P

K
W

Y
 S

W

LARKWOOD DR SW

BLUEBIRD LN SW

R
O

B
IN

 R
D

 S
W

S
P

A
R

R
O

W
 R

D
 S

W

CARDINAL DR SW

T
H

R
U

S
H

L
N

S
W

MOCKINGBIRD LN SW

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 P

K
W

Y
 S

W

LOCATION OF CASE NO. 5

Case No. 5
2115 Central Parkway SW Apt K 13 ®

City of Decatur
Board of Zoning Adjustment

July 28, 2020

Legend

a HOME OCCUPATIONS

parcels
SENT MAILINGS TO



 

44 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 6 402 BELLEMEADE ST SW 



 

45 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

LETTER 



 

46 

 

 
 

 

 

SURVEY 



 

47 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

LINE LOCATE 



 

48 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED SITE 



 

49 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED FINISHED POOL 



 

50 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SWIMMING POOL PERMIT 



 

51 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAP 

a

447
408

417
420

413
416

414

515 404408 406 402511 501503509 507 505 410412

516 514
512 510 506 417

415
502

413

416
405513 414511

403507 412 401
503501

410457455
453451

406

445

433
431 402429

425
421419

417
415

413
409
407405401

408
406

410

405 303309 307 305313315321 311323 319401 317403407409411415 413417427 419421423429 425431
433

404441439

415418

411420

418 407

512

510
508

504

515517519

523
521

521523
519

515

509
507505

501
503512

510

516

300

2691

2607
2606

2605 2604 2603
2605

2603 2602

2603

2414
2416

2412
2410

2406
2408

2404
2402

2413

2419
2417

2409
2407
2405

2401

2416
2418

2606

2414
2412

2410

2406
2408

2404

2402

2413
2411

2409
2405

2401

2403

2415

2413

2411

2407

2418
2416

2424
2422

2426

2601

S
A

N
D

L
IN

 R
D

 S
W

CLEARVIEW ST SW

SPRINGVIEW ST SW

BELLEMEADE ST SW

H
A

L
IF

A
X

 P
L

 S
W

B
R

IA
R

 A
V

 S
W

BRIARWOOD DR SW

AS PEN WAY

S
W

R
E

M
IN

G
T

O
N

C
IR

S
W

LOCATION OF CASE NO. 6

Case No. 6
402 Bellemeade St. SW ®

City of Decatur
Board of Zoning Adjustment

July 28, 2020

Legend

a HOME OCCUPATIONS

parcels
SENT MAILINGS TO



 

52 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 7 123 HAMAKER ST SW 



 

53 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 8 2732 LONGFELLOW DR. SW 



 

54 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAP 

a

a

a

aa

1418

2932

2807

2828

2705

2916
2912
2910
2908
2906
2904

2915
2913
2911
2907

2813
2811

2807
2805

2902

2915
2913

2801

2911
2909

2932 2931
29292930

2903

2925

2901

2926

29232924

2931

2922 2921
29192920

2929

2925

2916
2914

2924
2922

2928

2923
2921

2910
2908

2920
2918

2919

2904
2902

2812
2823 2810

2816

28082821

2804
2815 2802

2825

2817

2805 2806

28052810
28042803

2905

2803

2801280228012731
27272725 272927232721

2719

2717

2802 2804273627282724 27262722 2738
2720 2732 27342730 28082806

2715
1804

1809 18071811
1813

1825
2713

18151819
1821

18171823
1806

2716

2711

1814181618221824 18201826 18182709 1812

2708

2716

2707

1801180318071809 1805181118131815 2706

2704
2703

18061808 18021816 1810 1804
1812

1814

2704
2702

2701

1424

1604

2901

14121414
1416161218021810

14231609

MODAUS RD SW

D
A

N
V

IL
L

E
 R

D
 S

W

LONGFELLOW DR SW

LANIER ST SW

FITZGERALD DR SW

T
H

O
R

E
A

U
 A

V
 S

W

HEMINGWAY DR SW
F

R
O

S
T

 D
R

 S
W

M
C

D
O

N
A

L
D

 D
R

 S
W

M
O

O
R

E
 C

IR
 S

W

LOCATION OF CASE NO. 8

Case No. 8
2732 Longfellow Dr. SW ®

City of Decatur
Board of Zoning Adjustment

July 28, 2020

Legend

a HOME OCCUPATIONS

parcels
SENT MAILINGS TO


